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Rep. D. Anderson, Sponsor: This bill says you have to have a recommendation by a 
licensed veterinarian in a case of animal seizure. 

Doug Goehring, North Dakota Agriculture Commissioner: This issue started last year 
when a sheriff's department had the Humane Society of the U.S. provide materials and train 
how to identify an abused and neglected animal. The concerns are that we have ulterior 
motives. We need to have due process. We need to have a proper assessment of the 
animals. Otherwise we can be doing more harm to the animals and owners and tying up the 
courts. We need a licensed veterinarian that can provide information to law enforcement. 

Representative McWilliams: We have had cases of neglect where we had to seize some 
animals? 

Doug Goehring: This is bringing in a veterinarian before it is seized. 

Representative Boschee: Would this create delays for an animal that is physically hurt? 

Doug Goehring: Where there is an emergency, there would be reason to take action 
immediately. 

Deanna Wiese, North Dakota Veterinary Medical Association: (Attachment 1) 

(8: 12) 
Representative Hogan: If law enforcement is called , do the veterinarians have an 
emergency response system? Would law enforcement have a list of who to call? 

Deanna Wiese: I am not positive 

Trevor Graff, North Dakota Stockmen's Association: (Attachment 2) 
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Representative Hogan: Are you aware of seizures where there hasn't been legitimate • 
cause? 

Trevor Graff: I think this is preventive. 

Rachel Grosz, NDFB (North Dakota Farm Bureau): We support this bill because it puts 
decision making back in the hands of experts. Local vets will have an understanding of 
production practices, knowing the animal health history of an operation, and they can 
accurately assess risk. 

Our members drafted policy that asks for a veterinarian to be present in seizure cases. NDFB 
represents over 27,000 member families . 

We have had several special interest group trainings around the state. Law enforcement was 
given biased information on how to assess an animal abuse situation. Even if it would be 
unbiased, you can't put a veterinarian's experience and training into a day-long workshop. 

Larry Kinev IBAND (Independent Beef Association of North Dakota): We are in favor of 
this bill because it puts the decision making in the hands of a trained medical person . 
The main bill brought law enforcement in and now we want professionals training them within 
the state rather than an outside group. 

Allen Lund, Rancher from Fort Yates: About three years ago next to our ranch were dog 
trainers. They train bird dogs. When they returned to Iowa, the deputy sheriff stopped then 
and said the dogs looked like they were starved. The veterinarian was called and said they 
were healthy like well-honed athletes. They were all muscle and no fat. 

Joe Matehs, Cattle Producer from Upham: As producers our goal is the care of cattle and 
livestock. Often that comes before our own time, pleasures, and comforts. 

This bill is preparation of what might come about. 

(17:32) 
Gabe Thompson, Rancher from Antler, North Dakota: We have seen anti-animal 
organizations in this state show a renewed interest. They have tried to partner with law 
enforcement. This bill will prevent an agenda-driven prosecution. It will help hold 
accountable those that do break the law. 

Opposition: 

Ladd Erickson, Mclean and Sheridan County States Attorney: Back in the early 90s 
Sarah Vogel was promoting alternative livestock in North Dakota. We had warrantless 
seizure laws for anything outside traditional livestock. 

Two sessions ago the farm groups were in conflict on the criminal part. They asked for my 
help. They were deleting the search and seizure parts? Why? 
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These laws are not working so you are adding to something that is not working. 

We don't deal with livestock that much. We deal with pets. The livestock is the at-large 
cases. 

A common dog neglect case is the dog is on a chain in the sun with no water. Then I have 
to get a vet that might be 50 or 60 miles away. Then I have to get the vet to court. So I am 
adding a $600 to 800 cost to the seizure of a dog that a deputy could figure out. 

With livestock you need the veterinarian. Every time you need the Stockmen's Association 
to seize livestock. 

We need solid seizure laws. We need the State Veterinarian's office controlling what state's 
attorneys, sheriffs, and judges decide. The problem is the term "probable cause" is an open 
ended concept. I recommend the committee define what the courts need to follow as put out 
by the state veterinarian. We could say the courts shall follow the guidance of the state 
veterinarian in making a decision on an animal seizure. I want the state veterinarian's opinion 
to govern in court. 

If there is a way the committee doesn't have to add to a statute that isn't working now, add 
cost to the counties, and get the probable cause addressed so the state veterinarian's office 
controls the policy, you have a better law. These seizure laws don't work now. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: When we rewrote the cruelty bill it was through an interim 
process. It was rewritten 15 times to come up with the product we had. Were you involved 
with any of those meetings that went on for a year and a half? 

Ladd Erickson: The repeals of the seizure laws got added. That wasn't the committee's 
work. It was a debate over what was a felony not the seizure law. 

Representative Headland: I was never in favor of replacing all the seizure laws. If we were 
to pass this bill, does the deputy have to seize the dog with no water or can he just give him 
some water and pay a visit to the owner. 

Ladd Erickson: If you can give shelter and water, usually the seizure doesn't happen until 
it happens repeatedly. We usually put them on a plan. Nobody losses property rights until 
we do go to court. 

Representative Headland: I would like to do what you are asking. Would we have to come 
up with new seizure language. Is there time? 

Ladd Erickson: I can draft but I can't work the bill. 

Representative Skroch: Would it give you comfort to amend and add on line 9 "seizure of 
animals raised for agriculture purposes"? 
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Ladd Erickson: You have to look at the whole chapter. It would be hard to add to this bill. 
If we seize an animal and can't find the owner, we have to do publication in a newspaper and 
wait for five days after publication. I have to pay a kennel to hold the animal every day. 

T J Jerke, North Dakota Director for the Humane Society of the U.S.: (Attachment 3) 
Provided handout but did not testify. 

Neutral: 

Representative Hogan: Is there capacity to respond to the requests of law enforcement? 

Susan Keller, North Dakota State Veterinarian: When we get a complaint, we will contact 
local law enforcement. We have three veterinarians in our office. We have about 200 
veterinarians in the state. If the local law enforcement wants help, we contract a veterinarian 
who will go with law enforcement. Most are concerns about food and water. 

We do have after-hours phone numbers for our office. We also coordinate with state radio. 
If the veterinarian can't be there, communication can be done electronically so there is no 
liability to the law enforcement who may have to euthanize an animal on site. We have 
various animals and have to address the inhumane treatment of all animals. We try to get a 
veterinarian who has expertise with that species. 

Representative Hogan: Do you track all law enforcement investigations? I was surprised • 
with over 300 complaints in Morton County. 

Susan Keller: No, we don't know. We are only there if there is a questionable seizure. 

There is a process in place where the court should be petitioned. We thought that it meant 
there would be a hearing. A petition can be a State's Attorney contacting a local judge. They 
would like to have an investigative report by a veterinarian. 

We don't hear about all emergency situations. 

Representative Headland: Mr. Erickson said these seizure laws don't work. You talked 
about a different area of code that he is using? 

Susan Keller: Law enforcement has to give notice by putting something online or in the 
office. There is a process where you can give notice. 

Representative Headland: If there is another area of code that is working, can we just 
repeal this? 

Susan Keller: I can't answer that. 

Representative Oliver: What side are you on? 

Susan Keller: I am walking on the fence. I am here to answer questions. Every county 
deals with things differently. 
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Representative Oliver: Would you be in support of them sending out a veterinarian on 
every call? Do we have the resources? 

Susan Keller: We can do things with pictures and imaging. Distance means mileage. This 
bill doesn't say how that veterinarian would give input. 

Vice Chair Trottier: Line 7 says a law enforcement officer upon a recommendation from a 
licensed veterinarian . .. may petition the court. If there is a dog on a chain, he wouldn't 
have to go to a veterinarian. The law enforcement officer can get that corrected by talking to 
the owner. Then if it needs to be seized they can go through this. Is that true? 

Susan Keller: That is my interpretation. 

Representative McWilliams: What was the law you cited earlier? 

Susan Keller: 36-21.2-05, and 06. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: Are there other complaints from States Attorneys that this 
isn't working? 

Susan Keller: I think the concern is more forward looking in reference to that training. We 
want things to be dealt with in our state. 

Representative Skroch: T J Jerke says HSUS provides free post board certified law 
enforcement training regarding animal cruelty investigation. Does anyone certify that as a 
legitimate form of instruction that would be recognized by the State of North Dakota? 

Susan Keller: You would have to ask T J. I am not sure what process they went through to 
provide the training. 

Representative Skroch: That is the concern addressed in this bill. Were you more 
comfortable working under the previous search and seizure laws? 

Susan Keller: I did not have problems with it as it was before. 

Representative Headland: Moved Do Pass 

Representative Oliver: Seconded the motion. 

Representative Skroch: Line 8 it says "may" not "shall." That allows the flexibility for 
someone in law enforcement to make that determination. If more information is needed a 
veterinarian can still be called. 

Representative McWilliams: We opened up a dog kennel. We received two calls of 
neglect and handled it locally. 
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Representative Hogan: I am concerned about the capacity of law enforcement to get a 
consult even over the phone particularly in rural areas. I am concerned about unintended 
consequences. 

Representative Headland: I think common sense will prevail with "may." There isn't enough 
money to seize every dog and cat. 

Representative McWilliams: Any time there is a seizure it goes back and forth. By the time 
you need to seize an animal, you have called the vet already. 

Representative Schreiber-Beck: We are missing law enforcement input. How does this 
affect them? 

Representative Headland: If they were really concerned, they would be here. 

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes .JL, No 3 , Absent _--"-2'---

Do Pass carries. 

Representative Oliver will carry the bill. 
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Relating to the seizure of animals 

Minutes: 

Chairman Luick: Opened the hearing on HS 1348. 

ments: #1 - 6 

(1 :00- 7:50) Tom Bodine, ND Agriculture Department: Introduced HS 1348. This bill deals 
with the seizure of animals when it comes to neglect, cruelty, or abuse. The bill itself is self
explanatory. We have become aware of a group that may not have the best interest of us 
involved in agriculture come in and do law enforcement training with officers about how to 
identify when animals are neglected or mishandled. 
Mr. Bodine provided the committee with a copy of the training material (See Attachment #1 ). 
We feel this this bill is a step in the right direction providing protection not only for animals 
but for their owners as well. 

Chairman Luick: How often do you get these calls? 

Tom Bondine: I will refer that question to Dr. Keller. 

(7:45 - 8:40) Julie Ellingson, Stockmen's Association: Testified in Support of HS 1348 
(See Attachment #2). 

(9:00 - 10: 10) Deana Wiese, ND Veterinary Medical Association: Testified in Support of 
HS 1348 (See Attachment #3). 

(10:20 - Rachel Gross, ND Farm Bureau: Testified in Support of SB 1348. Our members 
have called for this common sense approach because it puts decision making back in the 
hands of the experts. Who is better qualified to assess the animal health situation rather than 
a licensed veterinarian. Licensed veterinarians are local, they have the privilege of 
understand a producer's production practices, they may know the animal health histories of 
an operation and will be able to discern if something is abuse rather than safe and effective 
practice. Our members have drafted policy which mirrors this legislation and a call for the 
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assurance that a veterinarian will be present should there be a livestock seizure case in ND. 
Unfortunately, as Mr. Bodine mentioned, special interest groups have taken it upon 
themselves to provide training for law enforcement and this is an issue because we cannot 
condense these years of education and experience that our veterinarians have into a work 
shop, particularly if that information is biased and providing our law enforcement with skewed 
information. The law enforcement is not able to make a decision based on the little training 
they received from a group that has an agenda. Furthermore, we believe in letting law 
enforcement do their job. We are blessed to have excellent law enforcement in the state and 
we have faith in those who serve the state in this capacity. But we want to be able to ensure 
that they have every tool that they need to succeed and that would include having the 
resources and expert opinion before they make a decision in a seizure case. This is a matter 
of putting our law enforcement in a difficult position where they may not be able to make an 
accurate decision because they don't have the tools. 

(12:50 - 14:18) Lyle Warner, ND Lamb and Wool Producers Association: Testified in 
Support of HB 1348. 
Mr. Warner shared an experience he had with a case on his farm. He said these issues affect 
people's lives and livelihoods and it is important to make sure we have someone who has 
the skill set to assess the situation and determine what is happening. 

Senator Piepkorn: In this particular case, did the state veterinarian come out and investigate 
claim? 

Lyle Warner: The state veterinarian had recently been out to the farm for another case so 
she was familiar with the situation. 

Senator Klein: So because you had a relationship with Dr. Keller and she understood the 
state of the farm, there was no issue and the charges were dropped? 

Lyle Warner: That is correct. 

(16:00 - 17:40) Aaron Birst, Association of Counties: Testified in Opposition to HB 1348. 
Our members are animal producers as well and support the Department of Agriculture. We 
worked with them early on and they gave us a heads up about this bill. From the 30,000-foot 
perspective we understand what they are trying to do, but the details are a concern for some 
of the county folks whether this is going to be an unfunded mandate where we have to get a 
licensed veterinarian involved in all cases and who pays that cost? From the prosecutor 
standpoint and state's attorney stand point, they are saying that we are going to have to pay 
that on the county side and will probably not receive any reimbursement in terms of the 
defendant down the road. There was a concern that in the common sense type of animal 
abuse cases where it is clear there is abuse going on it may be unnecessary to have to get 
a veterinarian to say that is animal abuse. We are not concerned about the animal production 
side but maybe there is an exception we can make for companion animals. 

Senator Klein: I see the bill was not amended in the house? 

Aaron Birst: We have to look out for what the county is paying and if we are going to have 
to pay more bills, we have to make you aware of that. 
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Senator Klein: Doesn't this cover the county when there could be an issue and this gives 
the county an opportunity not to pursue litigation? This will give you the information you need 
to know that when you prosecute someone, you have a case? 

Aaron Birst: I don't disagree with you but we are not talking about cases involving livestock 
animals. We are suggesting that maybe there is some sub category where you don't need a 
veterinarian because it is obvious that you should act without going to a veterinarian first 
because why do they need to investigate in a rural area to prove that a companion animal is 
being abused when it is obvious? 

Senator Osland: How often do you hear about companion animal abuse? 

Aaron Birst: It does happen quite regularly. Again, I think there is a way to separate from 
what the Department of Agriculture is trying to do with animal production which our members 
support and would fight any effort to restrict those types of cases. 

(21 :00 - 28:15) T J Jerke, ND State Director, The Humane Society of the United States: 
Testified in Opposition to HB 1348 (See Attachment #4) . Mr. Jerke provided the committee 
with training guidelines provided by the Humane Society (See Attachment #5) . 
The training is free; we have done two trainings that have trained multiple agencies last year. 
Law enforcement officials from last year enjoyed the training which did not talk about the 
need to seize every animal they come across. I invited the states veterinarian's office to 
attend our first training to which an individual did attend last spring and it wasn't until the fall 
that the concerns in this area came out. I would hope I can work the Department of Agriculture 
in this area moving forward but it is unfortunate that this bill is targeted in the way that it is. 
We work closely with the National Sherriff's Association and they adopted and endorsed our 
training across the country where we are training officials on all levels. Our training isn't to 
ruin someone's livelihood; we are just making sure that law enforcement can enforce the 
laws they have to enforce. 
Mr. Jerke provided an article on how the Humane Society's training was not a threat to animal 
agriculture (See Attachment #6). 

(28:40) Senator Myrdal: I spoke with multiple veterinarians before this bill was heard this 
morning and I am hearing that this is a practice that generally happens already and this bill 
is just putting it in code. My question to you is your main concern that these animals will suffer 
because of the timeframe here? 

T J Jerke: That is one of concerns. We are wondering how this will be practically applied in 
the field. If this is happening already and there are no negative issues, clearly there is not a 
problem so I would wonder why we would have to codify this in the first place. Clearly there 
is not a problem. But when you are looking at our rural community and you practically apply 
this requirement you have to wonder what the is the definition of a recommendation? Is it 
over the phone, do we need a veterinarian to drive out when they have the time to inspect 
that one animal? Our biggest concern is the time it may take. Is there a time limit we are 
asking veterinarians to fall in specific to companion animals? There are a lot of questions we 
don 't have answers but practically applying a mandate like this is our concern. 
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Senator Klein: In your testimony, you agree that veterinarians are experts at assessing a 
neglect issue. I see that you are concerned about the money but couldn't the Human Society 
find money so the veterinarians in the state would have opportunities to assess the issues 
you are most concerned about? You are a large organization and there is funding available; 
wouldn't that make sense? 

T J Jerke: As a nonprofit organization we would love to do that; however, it is not feasible. 
We would rather put it on proactive work in getting law enforcement the ability and tools they 
need to enforce the laws we have on the books now and identifying those issues. If it means 
splitting out companion animal issues from production agriculture, that is fine but we don't 
always support that as an organization either. As a nonprofit organization, we would hope 
the tax payers and the state can enforce the laws we have on the books. 

(33:20 - 39: 10) Dr. Susan Keller, ND State Veterinarian: Testified Neutral on HB 1348. 
I will provide some answers to some of your questions. 
First of all , in Mr. Warner's case, we have a protocol and sometimes those people are high 
profile and you have to scrutinize them more because the public might think we are sweeping 
things under the rug. 
We probably get hundreds of calls a year from the public complaining about a situation and 
our protocol is that we contact local law enforcement first and ask them if they can send a 
deputy out or if they aware of the situation. We currently offer services: either a veterinarian 
in our office or more often we recommend they contract with a veterinarian if they think it is 
a gray area or something that needs to be looked at by a veterinarian. If they do not have the 
money to contract that veterinarian, then we would contract with a veterinarian. In a case 
where a deputy has been involved, they will take pictures, do a report, tell us what they see, 
and they will ask for help if they need help. We have a good working relationship with almost 
every county and its law enforcement. We aren't looking for more work neither are they so 
you have to quickly filter out whether you need a veterinarian or not to further investigate the 
case. When someone thinks we are sweeping something under the rug I think what they 
mean is that because of information that we have or the nature of the complaint, the three 
main concerns is usually that there is a lack of feed, water, or shelter. Often the public will 
complain because they may not understand the situation. Because we may know that and 
we may know the person and we have seen the animals we know there is not a concern. We 
always document every complaint so we can see if it becomes repetitious. The other thing 
that was not talked about today was if there are repetitive calls we can identify that there may 
be a problem. For the sake of the animals, it seems that what we are often doing is trying to 
assess the situation and help the animals out and move everyone in the right direction. We 
are not there to protect the livestock producers if they are doing something nefarious. 
There are standards that veterinarians look to and that is the American veterinarian medical 
association animal welfare standards but the Board of Animal health also. In our state, things 
may be different weather wise. I have talked to people from other states who say they come 
here and they have to learn what is an adequate shelter for livestock. Again, until you look at 
the whole situation, it is hard to pass judgement quickly on many of the allegations. 
Emergencies and life threating situations- I have spoken with the state's attorneys and it 
seems from what I understand that their hands are not tied nor would it be if this is passed. 
If there is an emergency situation, law enforcement will be able to act. If it is an ongoing or 
prolonged situation, a veterinarian's assessment is often critically helpful when it comes to 
providing evidence for a conviction. 
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prolonged situation, a veterinarian's assessment is often critically helpful when it comes to 
providing evidence for a conviction . 
We share the cost now with the counties and if additional funds are needed, the 
commissioner is willing to help out from the agriculture budget also. 

Chairman Luick: On the average cost per year for all of the cases you 've handled, can you 
provide us with an approximate number? 

Dr. Keller: Actual cases where we may have sent a veterinarian out and contracted with 
them and then our own time? I don 't have a number. You have to pay the veterinarian what 
their hourly rate is. So that may be $100 an hour, etc. 

Chairman Luick: Would it be $300-$400 a case? 

Dr. Keller: That is a good ball park figure but often it is even less. The more egregious cases 
can get up to $1,000 or more but most are going to be $300-$400 or less. 

Chairman Luick: In the cases where an animal is euthanized , who is responsible to get rid 
of the carcass? 

Dr. Keller: That can be a shared responsibility. The owner may be incapable and that may 
be why the situation is as egregious as it is so that would be a shared responsibility. Counties 
have almost always stepped up through their emergency management and law enforcement 
folks to help bring animals to a landfill. 

Chairman Luick: If an individual doesn't have the capability to care for the animal, they may 
let the animal go downhill on purpose and pass the costs off on the state or county, correct? 

Dr. Keller: Correct. There is all sort of situations. 

Senator Myrdal: Does this bill provide for the veterinarian to make a decision over the phone 
or will they always have to go to the premises? 

Dr. Keller: We already have a working arrangement or protocol for truck roll overs. Often the 
person who is the first one to the sight may be state highway patrol and they have no 
knowledge of livestock. The protocol is that we recommend that they contact a veterinarian 
to prevent any liability issues and a veterinarian is on the phone helping them assess these 
animals remotely and gives them permission to euthanize them. That helps law enforcement 
and they have thanked us many times because they may not know what to do in the situation . 
We do email, make phone calls, whatever we can to help remotely if it is an emergency 
situation . 

Senator Klein: What I am hearing is that you are sharing the responsibility. The remaining 
issue is the funding issue. Do you see this change adding a lot of cost to either your 
department or the counties? 

Dr. Keller: I can't. I hope law enforcement state's attorneys don't read this differently than 
what we are thinking and that their hands won't be tied in an emergency where evidence 
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needs to be gathered and there is a life threatening situation. I don't see any change in the 
cost. I think people are much more cognizant and I'm hoping our number of reports goes 
down over time. 

Senator Klein: We passed animal cruelty legislation four years ago this and we still have 
bad actors. Do you see that? 

Dr. Keller: I absolutely agree. I think this bill came from a concern about how much space 
is needed for an animal, what air quality should be, etc. The concern is who is going to be 
making those decisions and while I applaud any group that is concerned about animals, I 
think there is concern about what else may be in the materials that are handed out and would 
law enforcement think that is endorsed by the Board of Animal Health, the state, or just by 
that organization. I think this discussion needed to be had and people need to realize that it 
is the decision making process that is so important. 

Senator Piepkorn: Early on in your testimony, it sounded like you have a good relationship 
with law enforcement. Do you see this law as necessary? Is it going to improve the situation? 

Dr. Keller: We have a good working relationship and I'm all about preventative medicine and 
being proactive and I think this is also. It may solidify that working relationship and but 
sometimes I think counties wonder who they need to contact for help and if their budgets 
aren't there, we don't want them to think they cannot address the inhuman situation. This will 
give them another avenue. 

Senator Piepkorn: How does local law enforcement feel about it? Does it throw a road block 
or obstacle if they see something that does need immediate attention? 

Dr. Keller: I can't speak to all law enforcement. We have never had any complaints and 
most people thank us for the help. 

Senator Myrdal: You said you get a lot of phone calls. Out of those complaints, how many 
are valid? 

Dr. Keller: That would vary and it would depend on the season. Overall in a year, less than 
10% are still problem after they receive a warning. We have a lot of complaints that once you 
talk to someone, changes are made immediately once they know their animals may be taken 
away. 

Senator Klein: What we have here won't create any issues but create the clear line we hope 
achieve? 

Dr. Keller: That would be our absolute goal and hope. If it becomes a hardship, we will be 
back here. 

Senator Klein: So we won't know if it's a hardship until after the laws are applied in the next 
triennium. 
Dr. Keller: If it passes, correct. 
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Dr. Keller: If it passes, correct. 

Senator Piepkorn: Gave the committee an example where the appearance of a farm made 
it look like the animals were being neglected when they were not. 

Chairman Luick: Closed the hearing on 1348 

Senator Klein: The counties put forth their concerns and I think Dr. Keller answered those 
concerns. We aren't expecting additional costs and this is a support for the counties and local 
law enforcement. 

Senator Osland: There was testimony that law enforcement needed more tools. This bill 
looks positive to me. 

Senator Myrdal: One thing that assured me is that this is already happening and this 
relationship isn't going to change much. I would hope law enforcement is aware enough to 
know when something is abuse and when it is not. If training needs to happen, why is law 
enforcement not trained by the state rather than this nonprofit organization on issues like 
this? My assurance is that it is happening already, we are just codifying it. 

Senator Klein: Moved Do Pass on HB 1348. 

Senator Piepkorn: Seconded the motion 

Senator Piepkorn: I do have some questions but I don't think there is a major concern . We 
will find out if it doesn't work. 

Senator Klein: We concern ourselves about situations that may arise but I think we can see 
they are attending to situations and they have a protocol for emergencies. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent. 

Motion carried. 

Chairman Luick will carry the bill to the floor. 
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North Dakota Veterinary Medical Association 
2304 Jackson Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58501 

Phone: 701-221-7740 • Fax: 701-751-4451 
E-mail: ndvma@btinet.net • Website: www.ndvma.com 

Chairman Johnson and Members of the House Agriculture Committee: 

My name is Deana Wiese, and I am representing the North Dakota Veterinary Medical 

Association (NDVMA). I am here today in support of HB 1348. 

NDVMA has spent more than a century representing the interests of veterinarians, their clients 

and patients. Today, the organization has more than 275 members representing small , large 

animal , exotic, bovine and equine practitioners and those veterinarians working in research, 

academic and government capacities. 

NDVMA supports the addition of securing a recommendation of a licensed veterinarian 

approved by the State Board of Animal Health prior to seizure of an animal or animals by law 

enforcement. This further protects the animal and its owner based on a clinical 

recommendation provided by a veterinarian specialized in the specific species of animal being 

considered . 

It is our understanding a veterinarian is already contacted in many instances prior to seizure of 

animals . However, this bill ensures equal treatment in all seizure cases. 

NDVMA would urge the committee to provide a Do Pass recommendation on HB 1348. 
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North Dakota Stockmen's Association 
Tesfmon on~ 
Feb.2,2017 

407 SOUTH SECOND STREET 
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58504 

Ph: (701) 223-2522 
Fax: (701) 223-2587 

e-mail: ndsa@ndstockmen.org 
www.ndstockmen.org 

Good morning, Chairman Johnson and House Agriculture Committee members. For the 
record, my name is Trevor Graff and I represent the North Dakota Stockmen' s 
Association, an 87-year-old cattle producers' trade organization. 

The Stockmen's Association supports HB 1348, which incorporates the expertise of a 
licensed veterinarian into the process when animals are to be seized in animal treatment 
cases. Often, licensed veterinarians are already called to aid in these situations to provide 
an expert analysis of the case. This bill simply codifies that practice. 

HB 1348, will help ensure that decisions related to animal seizures are science-based, and 
made by those who can make a professional judgment about the animal's condition. 

For these reasons we ask for your favorable consideration of House Bill 1348. 
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Testimony in Opposition t~ us: Bill 1348) 
Presented to the House A riculture Committee 

February 2, 201 
J Jerke, orth Dakota State Director 

The Humane Society of the United States 

Chairman Johnson, and members of the Committee, on behalf of The Humane Society of the United 

States and our supporters in North Dakota, thank you for this opportunity to share our serious concerns 

about HB 1348. 

We understand the intent of the bill, but the language provided is unnecessary, and would place an 

increased burden on those who are tasked with enforcing the law. Specifically, we are concerned with 

the time it may take, and the limited resources available to handle animal neglect, abuse or cruelty cases 

that take place in one of the many rural pockets across our state. 

In states that have a similar process to the proposal before you, there has been a growing concern from 

the public in how cruelty cases are handled. The burden and workload is shifted from law enforcement to 

state and local veterinarians. Law enforcement agencies thus become limited in their capacity to act, 

which can result in animal suffering and public outrage. 

The state of Tennessee implemented a similar policy that first put this issue on local extension agents or 

veterinarians. Because it was such an expensive and restrictive program, the state had to change the way 

they implemented the law. The Tennessee Dept. of Agriculture now has the assistant state veterinarians 

and agriculture crimes unit investigating all livestock cruelty complaints, and leaves investigation of 

companion animals up to local law enforcement. 

This bill would require additional work by state, or local, veterinarians, but no fiscal note has been 

provided. Will costs for additional help be compensated through the Dept. of Agriculture's budget? Will 

the Counties and municipalities have to take on this fiscal requirement? 

Many of you may know that our organization provides free, POST Board-certified, law enforcement 

training regarding animal cruelty investigations. During our collaborative training events with law 

enforcement agencies across the state in 2016, it was clear that these agencies are tasked with an 

incredible workload and are subsequently financially overburdened Despite what you may have heard, it 

is critical to note that HSUS agrees that veterinarians are experts in assessing neglected and abused 

animals and our trainings encourage officers to work closely with these professionals in order to 

appropriately enforce the law. However, the collaboration should not be prohibitive to their good work 

protecting our communities. We oppose HB 1348 because the proposed requirements would be 

unnecessarily restrictive to and expensive for the officers of North Dakota and the constituents they 

serve. 

If the committee approves the bill, we ask the committee first amend the bill to reflect these concerns. 

Thank you for your t ime. 

I 



Stretched state Board of Animal Health 
looking for more local help 
Posted 11 :28 pm, January 3, 2017, by Deanna Allbrittin, Updated at 11 :32PM, January 3, 2017 

INDIANA-Some people in Grant County are furious at the Indiana Board of Animal Health 
over a local horse's Christmas Day death. 

But the agency says its monitoring of the property over the last few years has been as effective as 
possible given limited resources. Each complaint from neighbors and everything they claim to 
see simply can't be checked into around the clock, said Public Information Director Denise 
Derrer. 

Neighbors say they saw a horse lying on the ground moaning for hours on Christmas Day. The 
day after, county investigators found the horse dead. That's when they called BOAH again for 
assistance. 

The horse was on a property owned by a man who the county has investigated for animal abuse 
before, following the deaths of two other horses in 2014, with the help of assessments and 
follow-up visits by the BOAH. 

"It's not just as simple as 'Oh that horse looks skinny, let's haul it away,"' said Derrer. "It just 
doesn't work that way and it just can't work that way." 

Derrer says they get emails, calls and complaints to their website from people frustrated that the 
board isn't "doing something." 

She says it can take a day or more to assess every animal on a property. Derrer says there's no 
way to do that for every complaint they get. 

"One of the big challenges is that we have 15 field people statewide and more than 60,000 
farms," said Derrer. "We can't follow up on every individual one, but we work with local law 
enforcement who are working there to do that at a local level." 

Derrer says the BOAH has no authority to seize or confiscate animals. They can only assess 
them and turn veterinarian reporters over to county officials. 

"We don't confiscate animals, we don't house animals, we don't make those determinations," 
said Derrer. "We don't file charges. We don't make arrests. We're just there as a consultant and 
assistance to local law enforcement." 

Typically, Derrer says they come in to help when asked by local law enforcement like in the 
Grant County case. She says they prefer to have investigations start with the people who work 
where the complaint stems from. 



"A lot of times they know the cases," said Derrer. "They've been out on them before. We would 
go in green and wouldn't know." 

In the Marion case, she says they've worked with local law enforcement for years to address 
problems on the property. 

"There's been some recommendations over time that maybe they need to change their feed 
rations or maybe do something differently like rearranging pasture arrangements, those type of 
things," said Derrer. 

Derrer says the property owner has cooperated fully, making the changes the veterinarian 
recommends. At no time did they find the animals on site at the time were in "imminent danger" 
of dying. 

But people keep calling. 

Neighbors say that's because the changes made end soon after board staff leaves. Then they go 
back to trying to feed the horses as best they can from over the fence. 

Derrer says that can backfire for two reasons. 

If neighbors are throwing hay and other feed over the fence, when a veterinarian comes to assess 
the animals' conditions and access to food, they see food. It doesn't matter how it got there or 
who paid for it. It just has to be there. 

Also, some of the horses are being treated for certain illnesses with special diets. The food 
neighbors are providing may not be helping them get better. 

Still, she says she understands the frustration. They get a lot of calls for horses, she believes, 
because even though they're legally livestock in Indiana, in most people's minds they fall in a 
gray area. 

"A lot of people consider them companion animals, versus cows or sheep that people look at 
them and think 'livestock,"' said Derrer. 

That's a debate she believes will rage on for a while. Until it's settled, the BOAH will likely 
continue to get many more calls for horses than other livestock. 

In the meantime, BOAH staff is training local law enforcement to be able to better handle 
possible animal abuse investigations. 

The hope is that if the board of animal health isn't involved in as many situations where nothing 
is wrong, they'll have more time to devote to legitimate cases. 
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For complete information about our anti-cruelty laws, 
dt: I 
Pj·' visit /egis.nd.govlgeneral-information/north-dakota-century-code. 

Read on for tips on how you can help identify and stop animal cruelty. 

HOW YOU CAN HELP 

Spot the signs 
• Hoarding (e.g. someone who keeps far more 

animals than they can care for) 

• Lack of veterinary care (e.g. untreated wounds, 
emaciation, scabs and hair loss) 

• Abandonment (e.g . a constant barking dog or 
howling cat; empty homes) 

• Inadequate shelter 

Chained dogs 

• M ake the call. Diali ng 911 is the quickest way to get 

Know what to expect with 
law enforcement 
• An officer may look into the complaint to see 

whether animal cruelty laws have been violated. 

• In cases of neglect, the officer may speak with the 

owner, issue a citation and give the owner a chance 

to correct the violation. 

• In North Dakota, a law enforcement officer can 

ask the court for an order for the seizure of any 

animal believed to have been neglected, abused or 

treated cruelly. In some cases, authoriti es can seize 

an an imal w it hout giving notice to the animal's 

owner or guardian. 

a response in an emergency situation. • After seizing the animal, the officer will ca re for the 

animal directly or by working with someone else. • Be prepared. Look on line for your local animal 
welfare agency and save the number on your 
cell phone. 

• Have a backup plan. 

,~~~ ~ 
o If you're traveling or live in a community without 

an an imal w elfare agency, ca ll the loca l police 
department to report suspected an imal abuse. 

o If your area lacks animal welfare resources, you 
can also email or ca ll The HSUS and ask to speak 
w ith one of our experts. 

~~¥L~ ,~.«:-{ THE HUMANE SOCIETY 
® OF THE UNITED STATES 

PUPPY MILLS 
Puppy mills are breeding 
, factories that churn 

)Ut puppies in terrible 
conditions. To report a 

puppy mill, cal l 
877-MILL-TIP. 

CRUELTY REWARDS 
The HSUS w ill pay a $2,500 reward 
for information leading to the arrest 
and conviction of an animal abuser 

Call 1-877-TIP-HSUS or email 
crue/tyresponse@humanesociety.org 

DOGFIGHTING 
The HSUS will pay up to 
$5,000 for information 

leading to the arrest and 
conviction of a dogfighter. 

Call 1-877-TIP-HSUS 
for more details. 



or a o a n I ma rue y aws 
N.D. Century Code Chapter 36-21 

3/1/17 H l3 tYlfr ~ / ""I 

(36-21.2-01) Animal Neglect [>~ .~ 
Penalty: Class A misdemeanor 

Failure to provide dogs and cats with: Failure to provide all animals with: 
1. Appropriate food and water 1. Appropriate food and water 
2. Shelter from the elements 2. Appropriate protection from adverse weather 
3. Necessary medical attention conditions 
4. An area that is well ventilated, clean, and free 3. Appropriate medical attention in the event of 

of conditions likely to cause injury or death. an injury or illness 

(36-21.2-02) Animal Abuse 
Penalty: Class A misdemeanor for 1st or 2nd offense. 

Class C Felony for 3rd or subsequent offense within 10 years. 

Any act that results in physical injury to 
an animal or that causes the death of an 
animal. This does not include any act that 
falls under the definition of animal cruelty. 

(36-21.2-03) Animal Cruelty 
Penalty: Class C Felony 

Breaking an animal's bones, causing the 
prolonged impairment of an animal's 
health, mutilating an animal, or physically 
torturing an animal. 

(36-21.2-04) Animal Abandonment 
Pena lty: Class A misdemeanor • 

Willfully giving up the custody or control of an animal, with no intention of reclaiming the animal, an 
without placing the animal into the custody or control of another person able and w illing to care for the 
animal. Abandonment includes: The desertion of an animal and failure to retrieve an animal within 48 
hours after the conclusion of a service contract. 

(36-21.1-07) Animal Fighting 
Penalty: Class C Felony to engage or be employed. Class A misdemeanor to be present at, or witness the activities. 

No person may engage in or be employed at cockfighting, dogfighting, pitting one animal against another, or 
any other similar cruelty. A person may not receive money for the admission of any person to any place used, 
or about to be used , for any such purpose. A person may not use, train, or possess a dog or other animal for 
the purpose of maltreating any domestic animal. 

(36-21.2-12) Unattended Dogs & Cats in Vehicle 
Penalty Infraction More severe if prior convictions 

An individual may not leave an animal unattended in a motor vehicle without ensuring that the animal's 
health and safety is not endangered. Law enforcement may use reasonable means to enter a motor 
vehicle and remove an anima l left in violation of this law. 



• North Dakota Stockmen's Association 
Testimony on HB 1348 

March 3, 2017 

Good morning, Chairman Luick and Senate Agriculture Committee members. For the 

record, my name is Julie Ellingson and I appear on behalf of the North Dakota 

Stockmen's Association, an 87-year-old cattle producer's trade organization 

representing more than 3,000 North Dakota cattle-ranching families. 

The Stockmen's Association rises in support of HB 1348, which incorporates the 

expertise of a licensed veterinarian into the process when animals are to be seized 

- in animal treatment cases. Often, licensed veterinarians are already called in to aid 

in these situations to provide an expert analysis of the case, and this bill simply 

codifies that common-sense practice. 

-

HB 1348 will help assure that decisions related to animal seizures are science-based 

and made by those who can make an unbiased and professional judgment about the 

animal's condition. 

For these reasons, we ask for your favorable consideration of this bill. 
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North Dakota Veterinary Medical Association 
2304 Jackson Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58501 

Phone: 701-221-7740 • Fax: 701-751-4451 
E-mail: ndvma@btinet.net • Website: www.ndvma.com 

Testimony of Deana Wiese 
North Dakota Veterinary Medical Association 

In Support of HB 1348 
March 3, 2017 

Chairman Luick and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee: 

My name is Deana Wiese, and I am representing the North Dakota Veterinary Medical 

Association (NDVMA). I am here today in support of HB 1348. 

NDVMA has spent more than a century representing the interests of veterinarians, their clients 

and patients. Today, the organization has more than 275 members representing small , large 

animal, exotic, bovine and equine practitioners and those veterinarians working in research, 

academic and government capacities. 

NDVMA supports the addition of securing a recommendation of a licensed veterinarian 

approved by the State Board of Animal Health prior to seizure of an animal or animals by law 

enforcement. This further protects the animal and its owner based on a clinical 

recommendation provided by a veterinarian specialized in the specific species of animal being 

considered . 

It is our understanding a veterinarian is already contacted in many instances prior to seizure of 

animals. However, this bill ensures equal treatment in all seizure cases. 

NDVMA would urge the committee to provide a Do Pass recommendation on HB 1348 . 



Testimony in Opposition to House Bill 1348 
Presented to the Senate Agriculture Committee 

March 3, 2017 
TJ Jerke, North Dakota State Director 

The Humane Society of the United States 

Chairman Luick, and members of the Committee, on behalf of The Humane Society of the United States 

and our supporters in North Dakota, thank you for this opportunity to share our serious concerns about 

HB 1348. 

We understand the intent of the bill, but the language provided is unnecessary, and would place an 

increased burden on those who are tasked with enforcing the law here in our great state. Specifically, we 

are concerned with the time it may take, and the limited resources available to handle animal neglect, 

abuse or cruelty cases that take place in one of the many rural pockets across North Dakota. 

In states that have a similar process to the proposal before you, there has been a growing concern from 

the public in how cruelty cases are handled. The burden and workload is shifted from law enforcement to 

state and local veterinarians. Law enforcement agencies thus become limited in their capacity to act, 

which can result in animal suffering and public outrage. 

The bill before you is taking steps backwards, and taking tools away from law enforcement, when we 

should be providing them with tools to effectively, and efficiently, do their jobs. What this bill should be 

doing is creating opportunities for North Dakota law enforcement to learn and become more 

comfortable with enforcing our animal cruelty laws. 

The state of Tennessee implemented a similar policy that first put this issue on local extension agents or 

veterinarians to provide a recommendation before seizure. Because it was such an expensive and 

restrictive program, the state had to change the way they implemented the law. The Tennessee Dept. of 

Agriculture now has the assistant state veterinarians and agriculture crimes unit investigating all livestock 

cruelty complaints, and leaves investigation of companion animals up to local law enforcement. 

Everyone knows full well that a seizure of one neglected or cruelly treated dog is drastically different than 

the seizure of a neglected or cruelly treated horse or cow. The amount of work, equipment, and other 

resources needed to remove a horse is far greater than a dog. Requiring the recommendation before the 

seizure is going to add unnecessary suffering, and create an added burden to cases involving companion 

animals. 

At the very least, if the committee is going to give this bill a favorable recommendation, let's consider 

how it will practically be applied in the field. Please consider amending the bill and following Tennessee's 

model, so law enforcement is at least allowed to use their discretion related to cats and dogs. 

This bill is vague when it comes to the procedure to which it will be applied. It's unclear whether law 

enforcement will have to wait for a veterinarian to be on scene before getting an animal proper care. This 

bill has no exceptions, or allowances, for exigent circumstances thereby convoluting the process. 

We believe this bill would require additional work by state, or local, veterinarians, but no fiscal note has 

been provided. I ask how this bill will not require additional funding to compensate the many more 

veterinarians who will be asked to assist. Will costs for additional help be compensated through the Dept. 



of Agriculture's budget? Or will the Counties and municipalities have to take on this increased financial P8 .:l_ 
burden? 

Many of you may know that our organization provides free, N.D. POST Board-certified, law enforcement 

training regarding animal cruelty investigations. During our collaborative training events with law 

enforcement agencies across the state in 2016, it was clear that these agencies are tasked with an 

incredible workload and are subsequently financially overburdened. Despite what you may have heard, 

it is critical to note that HSUS agrees that veterinarians are experts in assessing neglected and abused 

animals and our trainings encourage officers to work closely with these professionals in order to 

appropriately enforce the law. However, the collaboration should not be prohibitive to their good work 

protecting our communities. 

Our Law Enforcement trainings, and work across the country, are proudly supported by the National 

Sheriff's Association. Our two organizations work closely, and collaboratively, on many issues and cases. 

If you look to their website, they write: 

"We are proud to work with The Humane Society of the United States because of their expertise on 

illegal animal cruelty and fighting and frequent collaboration with law enforcement in pursuing those 

crimes. The HSUS has provided free training to tens of thousands of law enforcement officials across the 

country on how to investigate illegal animal cruelty and its connection with crimes against people." 

Following training with the Southwest Crime Conference in Dickinson, when asked what the law 

enforcement officials liked most about the workshop: 

• "Learning what to look for and know resources are available." 

• "Very informative- great PowerPoint- good use of pictures, videos & examples." 

• "The dogfighting part. I didn't know much before the class." 

• "What to look for involving animal cruelty and associated crimes." 

• "Gained extraordinary amount of info and training on what to look for, where, how, what and 

the signs of possible animal fighting or animal cruelty." 

• "Good information on all subject matters." 

• "Instructor was very knowledgeable and provided a wealth of information." 

Following training with the South Central Crime Conference in Steele, when asked what the law 
enforcement officials liked most about the workshop: 

• "Experienced speaker on the topic and concerns to look out and watch for." 

• "Energetic instructor- ability to keep class attention." 

• "Great presentation. Very interesting. Comfortable atmosphere." 

• "Knowledge of presenter & content of PowerPoint." 

• "The handouts and information provided." 

• "Learning signs of dogfighting." 

We oppose HB 1348 because the proposed requirements would be unnecessarily restrictive to, and 

expensive for, the officers of North Dakota and the constituents they serve. If the committee approves 

the bill, we ask the committee first amend the bill to reflect these concerns. Thank you for your time. 



an animal's condition and disposition in a case. 

There's also a Supplies & Equipment Checklist 

for large-scale animal sheltering operations. 

If you need assistance with or resources 

for a particular case, refer to Appendices I 

(Animal Shelters, Local Humane Societies, 

and Animal Control Agencies in Your State), 

II (State Agency Contact List), and Ill (HSUS 

Animal Rescue Team). 

1. Be Prepared 
The success of your animal cruelty investigations 

depends on several elements, including: 

• Local resources 

• The District Attorney 

• Expert witnesses 

• Photographic and videographic evidence 

• Key concepts: exigent circumstances and 
plain view doctrine 

• Search warrant procedure 

Becoming famil iar with these elements before 

you receive an animal related complaint increases 

your chances of presenting a good case. 

Local Resources 
Knowing the individuals and agencies who are 

involved with animals in your area is one of the 

best ways prepare for an animal-related investi

gation. The following resources might help: 

• Animal Control Officers/Local Humane 
Society Personnel 
Animal control officers and local 
humane society personnel are often 
familiar with people in the community 
and are aware of past animal- related 
complaints. In addition, they usually 
have (or know of) faci lities where you 
can take seized animals. 

• Veterinarians 
The services of a veterinarian who is 
familiar with the species of animal(s) 
involved in the complaint is critical to 
the successful outcome of any cruelty 
investigation. Veterinarians should 

4 The Humane Society of the United States 

be familiar with handling live or dead 
animals seized as evidence. They should 
be prepared to testify if necessary. 

• Local Stables, Fair Grounds, 
Farms, and Ranches 

• Many animal shelters don't have 
facilities that accommodate large 
animals and livestock. Find out ahead 
of time what types of animals they are 
capable of handling/transporting and 
sheltering. Become familiar with the 
stables, fair grounds, farms, and ranches 
in your area and determine whether they 
would be receptive to boarding large 
animals if necessary. 

The District Attorney 
A prosecutor will consider a number of factors 

when deciding whether to prosecut e an ani

mal cruelty case, including the strength and 

admissibility of the evidence, the background 

and history of the offender, the training and 

experience of the arresting officer, and the 

recommendations of the arresting officer. 

For these reasons, you should establish cont act 

w ith the District Attorney (DA) ear ly and main

tain it throughout a case. 

What to Do 
• Ask an Assistant DA (ADA) to review your 

application for a search warrant if you 're 
involved in a serious or comp licated 
case. The ADA will ensure that your 
warrant is in accordance with t he United 
States Constitution and that of your 
state. Be sure to consult the ru les of 
criminal procedure for the magistrate, 
metropolitan, and d istrict courts, 
as these set forth the procedure for 
issuance of warrants in your state. 

• Ensure that the DA's office is aware of t he 
animals' conditions as soon as possible 
after they are seized. Provide the ADA 
w ith copies of all necessary paperwork, 
reports, photographs, and videotapes. 

• Continue working with the ADA to 
obtain whatever additiona l evidence 
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http://bismarcktribune.com/news/opinion/editorial/training-not-a-threat-to-animal
ag/article_6ed79842-76d6-5d04-a260-11 0d2b9c87c6.html 

Training not a threat to animal ag 

Aug 12, 2016 

FORUM NEWS SERVICE 

North Dakota Agriculture Commissioner Doug Goehring said one of the state's greatest challenges is in animal agriculture 
Bio-Industry Summit, held in Fargo. 

Agriculture Commissioner Doug Goehring overreacted this week when he criticized the 

Humane Society of the United States for holding law enforcement training on how to 

handle animal cruelty cases. 



Goehring is concerned the Humane Society's training encourages law enforcement to seize 

animals without consulting with a veterinarian. In the long run, Goehring thinks the 

Humane Society's goal is to end animal agriculture. That's a big jump from helping law 

enforcement identify and deal with abused animals to taking animals out of farming and 

ranching. 

TJ Jerke, the Humane Society's director for North Dakota, disagrees with Goehring's 

arguments. Jerke said the society favors humane and environmentally sustainable animal 

agriculture. During training sessions the field guide used for law enforcement officers 

contains references to seeking a veterinarian's expertise, according to Jerke. There has 

been only one training session held in North Dakota. On May 12, training was provided at 

the Southwest Crime Conference in Dickinson. Officers from Bismarck and Dickinson got 

instruction from a police officer from Kettering, Ohio, who serves as a consultant to the 

Humane Society. 

Jerke said the Humane Society was invited to the conference. He has contacted North 

Dakota sheriffs to let them know that the training is available. The Humane Society 

provides the training with the National Sheriffs' Association and last year 54 seminars were 

held nationwide. 

North Dakotans worry about outside interference in agriculture. Efforts to weaken the 

state's ban on corporate farming failed in the June primary. There are laws restricting the 

sale of agricultural land to nonprofits. In November 2012, voters rejected a Humane 

Society-backed measure that would have made it a felony to maliciously and intentionally 

harm a dog, cat or horse. At the same time voters approved a constitutional amendment 
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guaranteeing the right of farmers and ranchers to engage in modern farming and ranching 

practices. The Legislature in 2013 made animal cruelty a Class C felony and established a 

felony offense for animal abuse on a third or subsequent offense. 

So North Dakota law protects many aspects of farming and ranching. It's a lifestyle 

ingrained in the state, but sometimes we go too far in seeing it threatened. The Humane 

Society remains devoted to protecting animals and helping those that have been abused. 

Offering to help law enforcement identify animal abuse cases shouldn't be seen as a threat 

to agriculture. 

Goehring told the Forum News Service that he was "shocked, appalled and disturbed" to 

learn about the training and has a "great deal of concern" about a politically active group 

like the Humane Society saying it can assess animal abuse. Goehring thinks law 

enforcement should rely on veterinarians. 

Goehring's concerns are a stretch. The Humane Society can be a useful tool for law 

enforcement and should be used. Just as officers should continue to ask veterinarians for 

help. 

North Dakotans should be protective of agriculture but at the same time we should be 

sensible. 

Goehring's complaints go beyond sensible. 




